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Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds ths number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(g) What changes to tbe administrative provisions of the Decedent's Tr11st were affected by the 
8/l5/2010 exercise oftbe Article VIII LTPA? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(h) What changes to the dispositive provisions of the Survivor's Trust were affected by the 
8/25/2010 exercise of the Article IX LTPA? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to thls Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(i) What changes to the dispositive provisions of the Decedent's Trust were affected by the 
8/25/l01 0 exercise oft he Article IX LTP A? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of pennissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(j) What changes to the administrative provisions of the Survivor's Trust (A.rtiele VIII) were 
affected by the 8/25/2010 er<;ercise of the Article VIII LTP A? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(k) What changes to the ad1llini11trative provisions of the Decedent's Trust were affected by the 
8/25/lOlO exercise of the Article IX LTPA? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request ~s it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(1) Has the Brunsting Family Trust ever been amended or revoki!d by a court of competent 
jurisdiction? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of pennissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 
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(m) Has the Elmer H. Brunsting Irrevocable Decedent's trust ever been amended or revoked by 
a court of eompetentjurlsdiction? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of pennissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(n) Was any specific trust property directed to be distributed by the 8125/1010 exereise of the 
Article VTII l.imited Testamentary Power of Appointment? If yes, wbat w11• the •peclfic 
property; to who w11s the specific property directed to be distributed; wl1en, in what 
proportions; and, according to what criteria? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(o) What sl'ecific trust property was directed to be distributed by the 8/25/2010 enrcise of the 
Article IX Hmited testamentary power? Atcordhlg to what standard was it to be 
distributed, when, how and to whom was it to be distributed? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Interrogatory No. 12 (Really, Interrogatories 57-65) 

With respect to the August 25, 20 I 0 QBD "Section B. Trustor's Intent in Establishing Personal Asset 
I!J!m,'t 

Intention I. To protect and consetve trust principal 

EE Bonds have long been known to exist, yet have never been included in the list of assets of the trust, or 
accounted for by the trustees. This was brought to your attention at the hearing in connectioo with the 
Report of Master in July 2013. Anita received a letter from the Treasury dated December 4, 2014, 
referriog to "your recent transaction and/or inquiry", which says the search "identified the unredeemed 
bonds described on the enclosed list". It goes on to state "The Department of the Treasury requires the 
properly completed forms be submitted in order to process the claims." A check with the Treasury 
Department gave a total value of the bonds as approximately $6,452.64. A statement at the end of the 
Bond List received as an attachment to the correspondence says: ""'If there are any bonds marked with 
an asterisk, they are within one month of tlleil' final maturity and may not be reissued or replaced." 
All bonds on the list are marked with an asterisk. 

(a) Why was your inquiry made more than one year after you were noticed of the existence of 
thooe EE Bonds? 

Answer: 

Amy Brunsting- Objecli,ns, Answers and Responses Page II) of26 



06/24/2015 WED 12:01 FAX 1!1022/029 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the 'feKas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(b) What claim(s), if any, were requested to be processed? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(c) Were the properly completed forms subsequently submitted? If no, why not? If yes, what 
were the results and wily have thfl transaction r11cords not been disclosed to Plnintiff(s)? 

Answer% 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Intention 2. To eliminate and reduce income taxes, generation skipping transfer taxes and estate and death 
tm<es on trust assets and on assets in the estate ofthe beneficiary 

The Decedent's Trust has received farm income every year, which has not been distributed since 2012. 
Consequently the decedent's trust owed hefty income taxes each year. 

(a) Why have those taxes not been redu~ed by distributions of f11rm income to personal asset 
tru&ts fm• the five beneficiaries? What advice have you obtained or been given regarding 
income taxes paid by the trusts, if any? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Intention 3. To benefit and provide for the financial needs of the beneficiary and his or her descendants; 

(a) In what way have you respected this intention? 
Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Answet·: 

Intention S To invest in non-consumables, such as a principal residence, in order to provide the 
beneficiary with the liberal use and enjoyment of such property, without charge, rather than make a 
distribution of trust assets to the beneficiary or purchase them in the name of the beneficiary. It is the 
Trustor's desire in this regard that the beneficiary, to the extent possible, use his or her own resources to 
pay for living expenses and consumables in order to reduce the size of such beneficiary's estate subject to 
estate taxes and claims of third parties; 

(a) ln what way have you considered the needs and resourees of beoellclary Candace Curtis In 
youf distribution considerations? 
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Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Tems Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(b) What facts did you rely upon in evaluating the needs and personal resources of beneficiary 
Caada\:e Curtis in your distribution Cl)nsiderati<,ms? 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Intention 6. To invest in reasonable business ventures, including business start-ups, where the beneficial)' 
is 11 principal or otherwise involved in such ventures or start-ups; 

(a) What inquiry did you make in effort to determine the existence of business ventures or 
start-ups that benefi~iary Candace Curtis may be involved in as a part of your distribution 
considerations? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of pe~missible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(b) In your determination not to fund individual asset trusts whnt facts were considered In 
relaiion to any of tbe remaining expressed intentions for such actio us? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of pe~missible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Interrogatory No. 13 (Really, Interrogatories 66-69) 

The Bates stamped documents included in Plaintiffs document production P6-Pl55,"My Trustee 
Manual". Chapter 2, Pl9-P22 is titled "BEFORE GETIING STARTED; A fEW IMPORTANT "DO'S 
AND DON'TS". 

Please review pages 2-l through 2-4 Qf My Trustee HandbQQk and answer the fQllowing questiQnS with 
specificity; 

(a) Which of the eight "Do's" have you done? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(b) Whicll ofthe eight "Do's" have you not done? 

Answer: 
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Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exe<leds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the TelQis Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(c) Which of the nine "Do Not's" have you done? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texl!ll R-ules of Civil Procedure. 

(d) Which of the nine "Do Not's" ha..-e you not done? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Interrogatory No. 14 (Really, Interrogatories 70-75) 

In establishing Personal Asset Trusts for the beneficiaries 

(a) Describe the steps you have taken to bono.- the provisions at Page 6 Item C of the August 
25, 2010 QBD regarding PERSONAL ASSET TRUST PROVlSlONS, as those l'rovisions 
relate to the personal asset trusts for eacb of the five Brunsting benelidaries? 

;\nswer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of pennissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(b) What dispositive and administrative provisions Dow to the personal asset trusts from the 
Decedent's Trust? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrcgt~.tories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(c) What dispositive and administrative provisions flow to the personal asset trusts fNm the 
Surviv01·'s Trust? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(d) When the dispositive provisions of the 01.1cedent'• Trust and those of the amended 
Survivor's Trusts are In direct eonfliet, what provisions of which instrument are 
controlling? Why? 

.t\nswer: 
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Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(e) When the administrative provisions of the Decedent's Trust and those of the Survivor's 
Trusts are in direct conOict, what provisions of which instJ•ument are controlling? Why? 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(t) Describe the steps you have taken to honor the provisions of Article X, Section B (l)(a)(i) of 
the Brunsting Family Trust? 

AnsweX': 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of pemlissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

InterrogatOI'Y No. 15 (Really, Interrogatories 76-77) 

Accounts and Accounting 

(a) How can yon croate pcnonal asset trusts and fullill the purposes of the Crust without 11 full, 
true, and complete statutory accounting? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(b) When and how did the acting trustees inform the benefieiaries regarding their beneficial 
Interests? 

Answer: 

Objection. Respondent objects to thi;; Request as it exceeds the number of permissible interrogatories 
allowed by the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 
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OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES 

Request for Production No.1 

Schedule F ·Purports to be a partial gifting reconciliation from Elmer and Nelva Brunsting from 2001, as 
developed from checking transactions. Please provide any bank statements beginning January I, 200 I 
through the present that have not already been provided. 

Response: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as duplicative of requests previously issued to one or more 
other p11rties to the subject litigation. It is harassing and an abuse of the discovery process for various 
reasons, including but not limited to its effort to obtain materials that have already been produced by other 
parties to the subject litigation. Additionally, it is premature and potentially in violation of the rights of 
one or more other parties to this litigation in the sense that it seeks information that the Requesting Party 
may no longer be entitled to receive (if she ever was). It is also overbroad in scope aud duration of 
request. 

Subject to the foregoing and without waving the foregoing objections, Respondent states: 

Please refer to Anita Brunsting's responses to the same Request, which is incorporated by 
reference as if fully restated herein. 

Request for Production No.2 

Please provide any Edward Jones statements beginning January I, 200 I through the present that have not 
already been provided. 

Response: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as duplicative of requests previously issued to one or more 
other parties to the subject litigation. It is harassing and nn abuse of the discovery process for various 
reasons, including but not limited to its effort to obtain materials that have already been produced by other 
parties to the subject litigation. Additionally, it is premature and potentially in violation of the rights of 
one or more other parties to this litigation in the sense that it seeks information that the Requesting Party 
may no longer be entitled to receive (if she ever was). It is also overbroad in scope and duration of 
request. 

Subject to the foregoing and without waving the foregoing objections, Respondent states: 

Please refer to Anita Brunsting's responses to the same Request, which is incorporated by 
reference as if fully restated herein. 

Request for Production No. 3 

Please provide a true and correct copy of the "Appointment of Successor Trustees" dated July I, 2008 
referenced in such instruments as the Certificates of Truet bearing Bates Stamps P6783, V&F 000004; 
P6784, V&F 000005 and P6785, V &F 000006. 

Response: 
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Objection. Respondc:mt objects to this Request •s duplicative of requests previously issued to one or more 
other parties to the subject litigation. It is hl!1"assing and an abuse of the discovery process for various 
reasons, including but not limited to its effort to obtain materials that have already been produced by other 
parties to the subject litigation. Additionally, it is premature and potentially in violation ofthe rights of 
one or more other parties to this litigation in the sense that it seeks information that the Requesting Party 
may no longer be entitled to receive (if she ever was). It is also overbroad in scope and duration of 
request. 

Subject to the foregoing and without waving the foregoing objections, Respondent states; 

Please refer to Anita Brunsting's responses to the same Request, which is incorporated by 
reference as if fully restated herein. 

Request for Productloo No.4 

Please provide a true and correct copy of the "Agreement" signed by Nelva Brunsting establishing the rate 
of trustee compensation clllimed in the April2012 spreadsheets and July 2013 Master's report. Please also 
include a copy of any letters of notice of change in trustee compensation, along with proofs of certified 
mailing to beneficiaries, as required by the Texas property statutes. 

Response: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as duplicative of requests previously issued to one or more 
other parties to the subject litigation. It is harassing and an abuse of the discovery j>tOcess for various 
reasons, including but not limited to its effort to obtain materials that have already been produced by other 
parties to the subject litigation. Additionally, it is premature and potentially in violation of the rights of 
one or more other parties to this litigation in the sense that it seeks information that the Requesting Party 
may no longer be entitled to receive (if she ever was). It is also overbroad in scope and duration of 
request. 

Subject to the foregoing and without waving the foregoing objections, Respondent states: 

Please refer to Anita Brunsting's responses to the same Request, which is incorporated by 
reference as if fully restated herein. 

Request for Production No. S 

Ple11se provide any and all parole evidence indicating Nelva's knowledge of and direct participation in 
discussions related to "changes to the trust" specifically in regard to the instruments dated August 25, 
2010, and those dated December 21, 2010. 

Response: 

Objection. Respondent objects to this Request as duplicative of requests previously issued to one or more 
other parties to the ~ubject litigation. It is hamssing and an abuse of the discovery process for various 
reasons, including but not limited to its effort to obtain materials that have already been produced by other 
parties to the subject litigation. Additionally, it is premature and potentially in violation of the rights of 
one or more other parties to this litigation in the sense that it seeks information that the Requesting Party 
may no longer be entitled to receive (if she ever was). It is also overhl'oad in scope and duration of 
request. Further, it seeks information, which - if it exists - is in the hands of third parties over whom 
Respondent has no control. 
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Subject to the foregoing and without waving the foregoing objections, Respondent states: 

Please refer lo Anita Brunsting's responses to the same Request, which is incorporated by 
reference as if fully restated herein. 

Request for Production No. 6 

Please provide copies of all supporting documentation upon which 2014 taxes were calculated and paid in 
regard to any Brunsting related trust(s). 

Response: 

Materials responsive to this Request have previously been provided by Anita Brunsting directly 
and/or through counsel. Addition!ll responsive materials are in the process of being accumulated 
and will likewise be provided by Anita Brunsting directly and/or through counsel. 
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STATE OF TEXAS 

COVNTYOF~~ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

~029/029 

VERIFICATION 

Before me, the undersigned notary, 011 this day personally appeared AMY RUTH 
BRUNSTING, the affiant, whose identity is known to me, After I administet'ed an oath, affiant 
testified as follows; · · 

My name is Amy Ruth Brunsting, and I am over 18 years of age, of sound mind and 
capable of making this verification. I have read answers to the interrogatories issued to 
me by Candace Louise Curtis. Unless otherwise noted in the content of the answers, the 
facts stated are within my personal knowledge ~nd are true !llld COITect. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me by t\a,u Bo IO':)t··ln~ on the J8._ ~ay 
of June, 2015. \ 



Exhibit 23 
Anita’s June 4, 2015 answers to interrogatories 

 



NO. 412,249-401

ESTATE OF § IN PROBATE COURT
§

NELVA E. BRUNSTING, § NUMBER FOUR (4) OF
§

DECEASED § HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
_________________________________________________________________________________

CARL HENRY BRUNSTING, et al §
§

v. §
§

ANITA KAY BRUNSTING, et al §

Anita Kay Brunsting ’s Response to 
Candace Louise Curtis’

First Written Interrogatories

Anita Kay Brunsting serves her response to Candace Louise Curtis’ first written

interrogatories.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Brad Featherston
_______________________________________
Stephen A. Mendel (13930650)
Bradley E. Featherston (24038892)
The Mendel Law Firm, L.P.
1155 Dairy Ashford, Suite 104
Houston, Texas 77079
Tel:  281-759-3213
Fax:  281-759-3214
stephen@mendellawfirm.com
brad@mendellawfirm.com

Counsel for Anita Kay Brunsting
In Capacities at Issue
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Certificate of Service

I certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing instrument was served on the following:

Candace Louis Curtis Pro Se
218 Landana Street
American Canyon, CA 94503
Tel: 925-759-9020

Bobbie G. Bayless Attorney for Drina Brunsting,
2931 Ferndale Alleged Attorney in Fact for
Houston, Texas 77098 Carl Brunsting
O: 713-522-2224; F: 713-522-2218

Darlene Payne Smith Attorney for Carole Ann Brunsting
1401 McKinney, 17TH Floor
Houston, Texas 77010
O: 713-752-8640; F: 713-425-7945

Neal Spielman Attorney for Amy Brunsting
Griffin & Matthews
1155 Dairy Ashford, Suite 300
Houston, TX 77079
O: 281-870-1124; F: 281-870-1647

via email on June 4, 2015.

/s/ Brad Featherston
_______________________________________
Bradley E. Featherston
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Response to Written Interrogatories1

_________________________________________________________________________________

Anita Brunsting objects to Candace’s interrogatories and request for production made pursuant to
“fiduciary obligations.”  Interrogatories and request for production are exclusive to the Texas Rules
of Civil Procedure and are not contemplated by the trust instruments nor any other applicable law.
To the extent Candace’s interrogatories and request for production are made pursuant to fiduciary
obligations under the trust instruments then, pursuant to the trust, the Trustee requires that Candace
pay the additional costs incurred to respond to such requests before the Trustee is required to comply
with such request.
_________________________________________________________________________________
   

1. In your exercise of discretion, which of the Founders’ ten intended purposes and what
aspects of the HEMS standard were factored into your determination to oppose a distribution to
beneficiary Candace from her personal asset trust, and upon what set of facts did your determination
rely? If you did not use any of the ten expressed purposes or the HEMS standard, what standard did
you use, if any?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, see Anita’s response to
Candace’s request for distributions that was filed with the Court and which
documents speak for themselves.

2. In 2011, which of the ten intended purposes, if any, and what aspects of the HEMS
standard did you apply to your exercise of discretion in transferring Exxon Stock to Carole, and
upon what set of facts did your exercise of discretion rely? If you did not use any of the ten
expressed purposes or the HEMS standard, what standard did you use, if any?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, such transfer was made at
Nelva Brunsting’s instruction.

3. In 2011, which of the ten intended purposes, if any, and what aspects of the HEMS
standard did you apply to your exercise of discretion in transferring Exxon Stock to Candace, and
upon what set of facts did your exercise of discretion rely?  If you did not use any of the ten
expressed purposes or the HEMS standard, what standard did you use, if any?

1  Candace’s Interrogatories were renumbered for the convenience of the parties and the
Court.
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RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, such transfer was made at
Nelva Brunsting’s instruction.

4. In 2011, which of the ten intended purposes, if any, and what aspects of the HEMS
standard did you apply to your exercise of discretion in transferring Exxon Stock to Amy, and upon
what set of facts did your exercise of discretion rely? If you did not use any of the ten expressed
purposes or the HEMS standard, what standard did you use, if any?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, such transfer was made at
Nelva Brunsting’s instruction.

5. Which of the ten intended purposes, if any, and what aspects of the HEMS standard did
you apply to your exercise of discretion in not transferring Exxon Stock to Carl, and upon what set
of facts did your exercise of discretion rely? If you did not use any of the ten expressed purposes or
the HEMS standard, what standard did you use, if any?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Defendant further objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, presumably the inquiry relates to the time period
Nelva Brunsting was alive and Nelva Brunsting did not instruct an Exxon Stock
transfer to Carl.

6. What are, and how did the trustees interpret, the particular distribution standards
contained in "the trust"?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Defendant further objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, the distribution standards are as set forth in the
trust instruments, which were interpreted as written.

7. What is/was the trustee’s process for making discretionary distribution decisions?
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RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Defendant further objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, the process is as set forth in the trust instruments.

8. What does the trustee require when asked to consider other resources and establish the
beneficiary’s standard of living?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Defendant further objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  The trustee requires
what the trust instruments provide.

9. Does the trust require a beneficiary to waive their right of privacy as a condition of
receiving a beneficial interest? If so, under which provision of what instrument(s)?  

RESPONSE: Defendant objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, the trust instruments speak for themselves.

10.  Does the trustee work with distribution advisors? If so, who and when? If not, why not?

RESPONSE: The trustee has not worked with distribution advisors.  No distributions have been
made since the Nelva’s death due to the litigation filed by Candace and Carl.

11. When and how did the acting trustees inform the beneficiaries of their beneficial
interests?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, prior to defendant’s appointment as trustee, on or
about October 23, 2010, Candace was informed of her beneficial interest via email. 
Shortly after Nelva’s death in November 2011, the trustees and their counsel were
in the process handling the trust affairs incident to Nelva’s death.  The trustees and
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their counsel provided trust documents and assets lists via email and/or mail in
December 2011 and thereafter to beneficiaries. 

12. What types of distributions would the trustees like a beneficiary to receive?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory as unintelligible.  Defendant further objects
because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking information about because
the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s
death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without waiving the foregoing
objections, defendant would like a beneficiary to receive distributions in accordance
with the trust instruments.

13. For what purposes can the beneficiary request a distribution from the trust?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, the beneficiary can request a distribution for the
purposes contained in the trust instruments.

14. When would the trustees like distributions to be made and in what priority?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory as unintelligible.  Defendant further objects
because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking information about because
the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s
death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without waiving the foregoing
objections, Subject to, and without waiving the foregoing objections, defendant
would like a beneficiary to receive distributions in accordance with the trust
instruments.

15. What circumstances should or should not exist prior to a distribution from "the trust"?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory as unintelligible.  Defendant further objects
because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking information about because
the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s
death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without waiving the foregoing
objections, currently, with respect to Candace, the Court must resolve Candace’s
claims and allegations in the pending lawsuit and, in particular, Candace’s allegation
that the no contest provisions in the trust instruments are unenforceable, prior to a
distribution.   
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16. Who should be involved in the decision making process?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, currently, the Court and the parties to the litigation
should be involved in the decision making process.

17. What factors does the decision-maker measure in determining the beneficiary’s need for
a distribution?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  Subject to and without
waiving the foregoing objections, currently, the Court would consider the factors set
forth in the trusts.

18. Describe the steps you have taken to honor the provisions of Article X, Section B
(1)(a)(i) of the Brunsting Family Trust?

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and misconstrues the provisions and effects of the trust instruments. 
Defendant further objects because it is unclear which “trust” the question is seeking
information about because the question is not limited to a time period (i.e., before
Nelva’s death or after Nelva’s death) and is, therefore, vague.  The referenced
section was superseded by Nelva and therefore, is inapplicable.

19. Describe the steps you have taken to honor the provisions at Page 6 Item C of the August
25, 2010 QBD regarding PERSONAL ASSET TRUST PROVISIONS, as those provisions relate
to the personal asset trusts for each of the five Brunsting beneficiaries?  

RESPONSE: After Nelva’s death, defendant began the process of collecting assets, informing trust
beneficiaries, and working the attorneys specifically referenced in such section to
implement the terms of the trust instruments.  The trustees and their counsel provided
trust documents and assets lists via email and/or mail in December 2011 and
thereafter to beneficiaries.  Candace then brought litigation. 

20. A copy of the 8/25/2010 QBD was included in the October 23, 2010 email attachments.
How did you come to be in possession of the 8/25/2010 QBD on October 23, 2010 when Nelva was
the only then serving trustee?
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RESPONSE: Nelva provided defendant such instrument.

21. What was your forthright explanation to Nelva regarding the changes that you planned
for her to make to the trust and what were the exact changes that you intended to be made?2

RESPONSE: Defendant objects to this interrogatory, as it is misleading, capable of causing jury
confusion, and is a compound question.  Defendant never planned to make any
changes to the trust for Carl.  It was defendant’s understanding that Nelva planned
to make changes to the trust.  There was a concern by Nelva, defendant, and
defendant’s siblings that Carl’s future well-being may not be met by Drina, and that
Drina may take steps to reach Carl’s share of trust assets.  Nelva never signed the
changes into effect. 

22. Where are the documents you referred to that you intended for Nelva to sign?3

RESPONSE: To defendant’s knowledge they were never signed.  Defendant does not know what
happened to such documents.

23. What was the date of your prior inquiry and why was the inquiry made more than one
year after you were noticed of the existence of those EE Bonds?

RESPONSE: Candace and Carl consistently and repeatedly accused Carol of stealing bonds that
were alleged to be in the name of Nelva or Elmer.  Defendant did not see a record of
the bonds being in the name of the trusts.  In late 2014, Carol informed defendant
that she could request a record of the outstanding bonds, which was done in mid to
late 2014.

24. What claim(s), if any, were you asking to be processed?

RESPONSE: None.

25. Did you subsequently submit the properly completed forms? If no, why not? If yes, what
were the results and where are the transaction records?

2  This is a question about a March 8, 2011 email from Anita.

3  This is a question about a March 8, 2011 email from Anita.
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RESPONSE: No, because Candace would not agree to the disposition of the bonds and the legal
fees to seek court approval to cash the bonds in light of Candace’s failure to agree
made the transaction cost prohibitive.

 
_________________________________________________________________________________

Defendant objects to the balance of the interrogatories as exceeding the limits of permissible
discovery under the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.  Defendant further objects to the balance of the
interrogatories because Candace has not paid Candace pay the additional costs incurred to respond
to such requests before the Trustee is required to comply with such request.
_________________________________________________________________________________

Intention 2. To eliminate and reduce income taxes, generation skipping transfer taxes
and estate and death taxes on trust assets and on assets in the estate of the beneficiary,

(a)  The decedent’s trust has received farm income every year, which has not been
distributed since 2012. Consequently the decedent’s trust owed hefty income taxes each year. Why
have those taxes not been reduced by distributions of farm income to personal asset trusts for the
five beneficiaries? What advice have you been given regarding income taxes paid by the trusts, if
any?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b)  When considering funding for Mother’s day-to-day needs prior to the establishment
of the Rights of Survivorship account in the name of Carole Brunsting and Nelva Brunsting, what
criteria did you use when you liquidated assets in the Edward Jones account? Was avoidance of
capital gains tax a factor? If not, why not?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

5. Trustee Manual:  The Bates stamped documents included in Plaintiff’s document
production P6-P155, “MyTrustee Manual”. Chapter 2, P19-P22 is titled “BEFORE GETTING
STARTED: A FEW IMPORTANT “DO’S AND DON’TS”.

(a)  Please review pages 2-1 through 2-4 of My Trustee Handbook and answer the
following questions with specificity:

i. Which of the eight “Do’s” have you done?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

ii. Which of the eight “Do’s” have you not done?
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RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

iii. Which of the nine “Do Not’s” have you done?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

iv. Which of the nine “Do Not’s” have you not done?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

6. Instruments are alleged to have been signed by Nelva Brunsting on August 25, 2010.

(a) Were you involved in the preparatory discussions? If yes, please explain the
circumstances leading up to the creation of the instruments.

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b) Were you personally present when those documents were signed? If yes, please
identify the location where they were signed and provide the names and contact information for
everyone who was personally present when those instruments were signed.

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

7. Instruments are alleged to have been signed by Nelva Brunsting on December 21, 2010.

(a) Were you involved in the preparatory discussions? If yes, please explain the
circumstances leading up to the creation of the instruments.

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b) Were you personally present when those documents were signed? If yes, please
identify the location where they were signed and provide the names and contact information for
everyone who was personally present when those instruments were signed.

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

8. Please refer to the RESPONSE OF DEFENDANTS TO REPORT OF MASTER, filed

10



August 27, 2013, and answer the following:

Regarding trustee compensation,

(a) At the point in time when you paid your personal credit card debts from trust assets,
were you aware that paying personal debt obligations directly out of trust accounts can be
considered self-dealing or co-mingling, whether you were entitled to trustee compensation or not?
If not, why not?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b) Appendix A, Section 1. states that Vacek & Freed determined the percentage amount
of your fee to be 2% of the trust value of $2,291,300, or $45,826.00. What date was the fee
calculation determined? What trust was the value based upon? What trust assets and their
corresponding values were used in the calculation? Why was this calculated on an annual basis,
rather than monthly or quarterly, since the value of the trust diminished every single month? What
provision(s) in the trust set forth the standard for calculating this rate of compensation?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

9. Please refer to George Vie’s July 15, 2013 letter to the Master and Attachment 1 to these
interrogatories when considering the following questions. Note that Attachment 1 is a summary of
your Schedule F, plus distributions to beneficiaries from the Edward Jones account during the
10-year period covered by the schedule, and the distribution you received in 2005 to pay off your
house.

Your letter states that:

“Numerous gifts were given to the older Brunsting children (Carl, Candace and Carole);
Candace’s sons, Kevan Curtis and Andy Curtis (currently in their mid-30s); and Carl’s daughter,
Marta Brunsting Huntsman (prior to Mr. Brunsting’s death) to assist with their college,
business and/or wedding expenses.” Attachment 1 demonstrates that during the 10-year period of
the schedule, approximately 46% of the distributions went to Candy, Carole, Carl, Kevan and Andy,
with the balance of approximately 54% going to you, Amy and your respective children. Nothing
was noted to have been received by Marta during the 10-year period.

(a) Please state with specificity the dates and amounts of all gifts given to the older
beneficiaries and the source of the information in support of these alleged transactions, as claimed
by you in your July 15, 2013 letter of influence addressed to the Special Master.

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
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the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b) Our Dad died April 1, 2009. The only noted transactions labeled as gifts to Kevan
and Andy Curtis are dated October 2, 2009. Please state with specificity the dates and amounts of
all other alleged gifts given to Kevan, Andy, or Marta between 2001 and April 1, 2009, the source
of the information in support of these transactions, and the reason why these transactions were not
listed on any schedules.

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(d) In general the July 15, 2013 letter to the Master attempts to provide excuses for the
sudden acceleration of dissipation of mass quantities of trust assets while our Mother was still alive.
These take-my-word-for it assertions have not been supported by Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in any disclosures. The recap of distributions, or gifts if you want to call them
that, reflected on Attachment 1, clearly shows an inequity. What was the distribution standard
applied to those transactions? What effect did these transactions have on the value of the trust assets,
trust tax liabilities, and the personal tax liabilities of the recipients? What were the facts upon which
discretion was exercised in each of these transactions?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(e) In your July 15, 2013 letter to the Master you claim “Defendants are individuals, not
financial professionals.” It is presumed you knew of this fiscal incompetence before accepting the
appointment to a fiduciary office. Did you hire financial professionals to assist you in meeting the
obligations commensurate with your fiduciary duties? If yes, who, when, and what did they do? If
not, why not?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(f) In a letter dated May 22, 2012, Edward Jones states “We’re contacting you because
either your financial advisor recently updated your account information or it has been three years
since we last verified your information.” It goes on to ask you to “Please  review the enclosed pages,
which list your account information. If the information is correct, you do not need to return this
letter.” This information contains the following:  

Net Worth (must exclude value of primary residence): $1,700,000

Annual Income: $64,000

Prior Investment Experience: (4) Extensive Experience
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Risk Profile: (3) Moderate

Current Occupation: Homemaker

Did you return the letter? If not, why not? When did you provide this information to
Edward Jones originally?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

10. The following questions refer to information contained in the 2011 Form 1040 for Nelva
E Brunsting, prepared by Kroese & Kroese P.C., signed by you as fiduciary “Under penalties of
perjury”.

(a) Line 15a IRA distributions = $58,792 / 15b Taxable amount = $58,792. On February
24, 2010, Mother executed a Change of Beneficiary Designations for IRA Account at Edward Jones,
designating the five of us as “ beneficiaries in equal shares”. A previous List of Beneficiaries under
Edward Jones letterhead, dated July 23, 2009, stated the same designation. On May 23, 2011, an
electronic transfer was made from the IRA account number 609-91956-1-9, to the B of A account
ending in 1143, in the amount of $54,000.

i.  Were you aware of Mother’s beneficiary designation for her IRA? If yes, why did
you fail to follow it? If no, how could you not be?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

ii.  Did you know this transaction would cause a tax liability for Mother?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b) Schedule A Medical and Dental expenses are listed as $118,893.

i.  Many of the caregiver payments contained reimbursements for meals and
incidental expenses purchased on behalf of our Mother. Were these reimbursementsincluded in the
caregiver costs? If so, what is the total for these reimbursements? Did the preparer know these
reimbursements were included? If so, please provide support of the preparer’s knowledge.

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

ii.  IRS Publication 926 Household Employer’s Tax Guide sets forth the rules for
employment taxes. You were required to withhold and pay social security and Medicare taxes on
the wages. As the employer you can choose to pay this yourself and not withhold it. Did you
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withhold social security and Medicare from the caregivers paychecks? If no, why not? Did you pay
13.3% of gross wages on behalf of the caregivers to the IRS? If no, why not? Did you issue a W-2
to each caregiver? If no, why not?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(c)  Did you seek the advice of a professional in connection with employing caregivers
and related employment taxes? Did you seek the advice of a professional regarding what medical
and dental expenses are deductible? If so, who did you consult with and what did they tell you?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

11. Numerous distributions have been made and some requests for distribution have been
declined or opposed by you based upon your exercise of discretion.

(a) To what extent, if any, did Amy participate in your discretionary decisions?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b) To what extent, if any, did Carole participate in your discretionary decisions?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(c) To what extent, if any, did Candace participate in your discretionary decisions?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(d) To what extent, if any, did Carl participate in your discretionary decisions?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(e) To what extent, if any, did Candace Freed participate in your discretionary decisions?

RESPONSE: Defendants objects to this interrogatory as it exceeds the interrogatory limitations in
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

*     *     *     *     *
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Exhibit 24 
Candace email statutory demand for accounting 

 



MIME-Version: 1.0
Content-Type: multipart/mixed; boundary="----=_Part_483675_1625879494.1443134736376"

On Monday, June 15, 2015 3:40 PM, Candace Curtis <occurtis@sbcglobal.net> wrote:

Anita and Amy have a fiduciary obligation to provide ALL of the beneficiaries with the same
information regarding trust income and expenses, on a regular basis.  IT IS THEIR DUTY TO
ACCOUNT, and to keep us advised of our beneficial interests, yet they have failed to properly
do so for more than 4 and a half years.

Judge Butts' September 4, 2014 order states that the trustees:

"- provide all parties with notice of their intent to pay all federal income taxes... within five
business days of the receipt of the amount of taxes due along with all documentation received
from the accountant of the amount of such taxes and provide all parties with copies of all tax
returns to be filed... and all invoices form the accountant related to the preparation of federal
and state income tax returns...;  and provide all parties with copies of the checks paid within
five business days of the date of payment and a copy of all executed documents filed with the
checks;" 

Your flagrant disrespect of the federal injunction, calling it questionable, and Anita's willful
violation of the injunction is contemptible, to say the least.  

None of the criteria of Judge Butts' order has been met.

Please provide the backup for the 2014 Decedent's Trust Form 1041.  Line 14 - Attorney,
accountant, and return preparer fees, in the amount of $16,831, needs to be supported in more
detail, as does the capital gain on line 4.

Please send copies of all bank and brokerage statements for 2014.  It is possible these were
forwarded earlier to prior counsel, but I don't have them.

The payment to Kroese & Kroese P.C. for the "farm lease" (BRUNSTING005519) was
unauthorized and a violation of the injunction.

Amy and Anita's failure to negotiate the EE Bonds before they reached the point where they
"may not be reissued or replaced" cannot be excused.  The assertion that they did not know
about them, when they themselves disclosed their existence in their April 9, 2013 CD, simply
won't cut it.  On August 13, 2013, in response to their objection to the Report of Master, at item
4, I identify the missing EE Bonds as known assets of the trust that the trustees did not
account for.  On September 3, 2013, at a hearing on the Report of Master, during Mr. West's
testimony, he mentioned his curiosity as to the whereabouts of said bonds.  A check with the
Treasury Department website revealed how easy it is to have the bonds replaced or reissued
when they have been lost, or stolen (as the case may be).  One need only submit the
documentation as listed on the attached letter I received from the Treasury Department, dated
October 8, 2014.  I do not possess this documentation, the trustees are supposed to have
these instruments.

This failure equates to approximately $6,500.00 in lost value of the trust assets.  Whether it is
irresponsible, reckless, careless, negligent, or intentional, is inconsequential in the face of the
blatant refusal of the trustees to properly protect and account for these assets.  It is not even a
little amusing that three years after Anita allegedly became trustee, that she should claim

Fw:	Request	for	Accounting
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ignorance as to the trusts' ownership interest in those bonds or that after more than 2 years of
attempting to get them to account for the bonds it is apparently the plaintiff's fault for not
consenting to the trustees' cashing of bonds not even in their possession.

This electronic communication shall stand as a demand for a full, true, and complete
accounting, certified as such, in conformance with the Texas Property Code and the common
law.

It is also my final informal demand for the fiduciary disclosure, which the trustees full well know
is the property of all five beneficiaries, and I do not have to pay them anything to meet their
fiduciary obligations.  Let's start with the July 1, 2008 appointment that you assert has already
been disclosed.

Candace L. Curtis
218 Landana Street
American Canyon CA 94503
925-759-9020
occurtis@sbcglobal.net

Attachments:

10082014 EE Bond Treasury Response Letter to candy.pdf 4.4 MB

Fw:	Request	for	Accounting
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To: Bobbie G. Bayless 

From: CoryS. Reed 

Date: March 4, 2014 

File No: 00520-415 

Thompson Coe Fax:713d038298 Mar d 201d 05:08pm P001 

THOMPSON 
COE 

Ihompson, Coe, Cousins & Irons, L.LJ>_ 
Attorneys and Counselors 

Fa:x: (713) 522-2218 

fhone: -------------------

fhone: (713) 403-8213 

Time: ------------------------------

User lD: -=RE=E:::oDo:_Cc::_ ________ _ 

Re: Cause No_ 2013-05455; Carl Henry Brunsting, er al v, Candace L- Kunz"Freed, et al; l.n 

the 164m Judicial District Court of Harris County, Texas 

There are ,956 pages being sent, including thls page. 

If you are having difficulty receiving this document, please call: 

Rosie Gonzalez at 
----------~~~~~=----------

(713) 403-8396 

D Urgent D ForRevkw D Please Co111ment D Please Reply 

Message: Please see attached. 

Confidentiality Notiee: This message is intended only for the use of the iod\vj<;lual or entity to whom it is addressed 

and may contain information that is confidential and protected from disclosure by raw. If the reader of thls message is 

not the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, 

you are hereby notified that any distribution Or' copying is prohibited. If you received this communication in error, 

please notify us lmmediC:~tely by telephone (collect), and retum the original to us ;;~t the address below via U.S. Posti511 

Service. 

One Riverway I S~ite1400 I Ho~ston, Texas 77056 I (113) 403-8210 I Fax: (713) 403-8299 



Cory S. Reed 
Direct Dial; (713) 403·8213 

creed.@thompsonGoe.corn 

VIAFACSJMlLE 
Bobbie G. Bayless 
B3y)ess & Stokes 
2931 Ferndale 
Houston, Texas 77098 

Thompson Coe Fax;713d038298 

THOMPSON 
COE 

Thompson, Coe, Cousins & Jrons, L.L.P. 
Attorneys and Counselors 

March4, 2014 

Mar d 201d 05;Q8pm P002 

Austin 
Dallas 

Houston 
Los Angeles 

Northern California 
Saint Paul 

Re: No. 2013-05455; Carl Henry Brunsting, eta! v. Candace L Kunz-Freed, et al; In 

the I 64th Judicial District Court of Harris County, Texas. 

Dear Ms. Bayless: 

Enclosed, please find the following: 

/rg 
Enclosures 

1979525vl 
005:;!.041.:5 

1. Defendm1.ts' First Amended Objections m1.d Responses to Plaintiffs Fhst Request 

for Production; m1.d 

2. DefendmJ.t Candace L. Kunz' First Amended Objections and Answers to 

Plaintiffs First Set oflnterrogatories. 

Sincerely, 

r· ll ~~t / 
COry S. Reed 

QneRiverway I Suitel400 I Houston, Texas 77056 I (713) 403-8210 I Fax: (713) 403-8299 
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CAUSE NO. 2013-05455 

CARL HENRY BRUNSTING, 
INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR OF THE 
ESTATES OF ELMER H. BRUNSTING 
AND NEL VA E. BRUNSTING, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

CANDACE L. KUNZ-FREED AND VACEK § 

&FREED,PLLCFIK/A THEVACEKLAW § 

FIRM, PLLC, § 

Defendants. 
§ 
§ 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF 

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

164TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

DEFENDANTS' FIRST AMENDED OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES TO 

PLAlN'l'lFF'S FIRST ltEOUEST FOR PRODUCTION 

TO: CARL HENRY BRUNS'l'lNG, INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR OJ1 THE ESTATE 

Ol" ELMER H. BRUNSTING AND NEL VA E. BRUNSTING, Plaintiff, by and 

through his attorney of record, Bobbie G. Bayless, Bayless & Stokes, 2931 Ferndale, 

Houston, Texas 77098. 

Pursuant to Rule 196, TEXAS RuJ.-J':S OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, Defendants CANDACE L. 

KUNZ-FREED AND VACEK & J1REED, PLLC FfK/A THE VACEK LAW FlRM, PLLC 

hereby submits their First Amended Objections and Responses to Plaintiffs First Request for 

Production. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

THOMPSONf9E, COU S & IRONS, L.L.P. 

By: =------:~~~--fl.;;;::------~ 
Za.ud~a E. f ey 
State Bar No. 24032085 
Cory S. Reed 
State Bar No. 24076640 
One Riverway, Suite 1600 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Telephone: (713) 403-8200 
Telecopy: (713) 403-8299 
E-Mail: zfolev@thompsoncoe.com 
E-Mail: creed@thomspsoncoe.cQm 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS, 
CANDACE L. KUNZ-FREED AND VACEK 
& J.?REED, l'LLC F/KJA TllE V A.CEK LAW 
fiRM,PLLC 

CERTIFICATE Of SERVICE 

I hereby certifY that pursuant to the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure, on this the 4th day of 
March, 2014, a true and cotTect copy of this document has been forwarded by certified mail, 
facsimile and/o~ e-fi)ing to counsel: 

19l;z730vl 
00520-415 

Bobbie G. Bayless 
Bayless & Stokes 
2931 Femdale 
Houston, Texas 77098 

Cory S. Reed 
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REQU:EST FOR PRODUCTION 

JU;QUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 1: All agreements with Elmer Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REOUES'T FOR PRODUCTION NO. 2: All agreements with Nelva Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUC'TION NO. 3; All agreements with Anita Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes fucts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks infotmation protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

perso:o.(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

REOUEST FOR PROlJUCTION NO. 4: All agreements with Amy Bru:o.sting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attomey-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

REQUEST FOR PROOUCTION NO. 5: All agreements with Carole Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants object to 
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this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of person(s) who are not 

parties to tbis lawsuit 

Subject to and without watvmg the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at tbis time. 

MODEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 6: All joint defense agreements with any party 

concerning the Brunsting Trust dispute. 

RESl'ONSE: Defeudants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, a:ud 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR l'RODUCTlON NO. 7: All invoices for services provided or expenses 

inc=ed on behalf of Elmer and/or Nelva Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR l'RODUCTION NO. 8: All documents reflecting payments made on the 

invoices described in number 7 above. 

RESl'ONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants Jespond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

RlfOUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 9: All invoices for services provided or expenses 

incurred on behalf of Anita and/or Amy Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants :futther object to this request because it is not limited in time. 
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Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants futther 

object to this regpest to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

REQUEST FOR PROOUCTION NO. 10: All documents reflecting payments made on the 

invoices described in number 9 above. 

RESPONSE:· Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client pdvilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not pmties to this lawsuit. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 11: All invoices for services provided or expenses 

inculTed on behalf of any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks inf01mation protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person( s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUC'flON NO. 12: All doc=ents reflecting payments made on the 

invoices described in number 11 above. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably caiculated to lead to the discove1y of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further' object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private info1mation of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 13: All correspondence, including emails, with Elmer 

and/or Nelva Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 14: All correspondence, including emails, with Anita 

Brunsting prior to the establishment, if any, of an attorney client relationship with her. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 15: All correspondence, including emails, with Amy 

Brunsting prior to the establishment, if any, of an attorney client relationship with her. 

RESPONS11:: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST :FOR PRODUCTlON NO. 16: All correspondence, including emails, with Carole 

Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST :FOR PRODUCTION NO. l7: All correspondence, including emails, with Carl 

and/or Drina Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR l'RODUCTION NO. 18: All correspondence, including ernails, with Carl 

Brunsting's daughter, Marta. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 
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Subject to and without waJVmg the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 19: All correspondence, including emails, with any 

third parties, other than your attorney, about Nelva Btunsting, any other member of the 

Brunsting family, and/or any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants funher object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants object to 

this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further object to this request to 

the e;,:tent it seeks information protected by the attorney -client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 20: All drafts of documents prepared by Vacek & 

Freed for Nelva Brunsting's signature. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and >vithout waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced . 

.REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 21: Originals of all documents signed by Nelva, Elmer, 

Anita, Amy, Candy, Carole, or Carl B1unsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. The originals will be made available at the 

offices of Defendants' counsel at a reasonable and mutually agreeable date and time. 

REQUEST :FOR PRODUCTION NO. 22: Originals of all documents notarized by Candace 

freed involving Elmer, Nelva, Anita, Amy, Candy, Carole, or Carl Brunsting and/or any of the 

Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants :further object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. The originals will be made available at the 

offices ofDefel;ldants' counsel at a reasonable and mutually agreeable date and time. 
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REQUEST :FOR PRODUCT!ON NO. 23: Origwals of all documents notarized or witnessed 

by anyone at Vacek & Freed, PLLC other than Candace Freed which wvolve Elmer, Nelva, 

Anita, Amy, Candy, Carole, or Carl Brunsting and/or any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. The originals will be made available at the 

offices of Defendants' counsel at a reasonable and mutually agreeable date and time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCT! ON NO. 24: All opinion letters or reports provided concerning 

Elmer, Nelva, Amy, Anita, Candy, Carole, or Carl Brunsting or any of the Brunstwg Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants object to 

this request because h assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further object to this request to 

the extent it seeks inf01mation protected by the attomey-client privilege. Defendants object to 

this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private wformation of person(s) who are not 

parties to this lawsuit Defendants further object to this request because it seeks, on its face, the 

mental impressions, opinions, and legal theories, and thereby wvades the work product privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 25: All opinion letters or reports sought or received 

from any third parties concerning Elmer, Nelva, Arny, Anita, Candy, Carole, or Carl Brunsting 

or any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants object to 

this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further object to this request to 

the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. Defendants object to 

this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private infowation of person(s) who are not 

parties to this laWBuit. Defe11dants further object to this request because it seeks, on its face, the 

mental impressions, opinions, and legal theories, and thereby invades the work product privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 26: All joint representation or conflict of interest 

disclosures provided to Elmer, Nelva, Anita and/or Amy B!unsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 
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is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person( s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

lillOUEST FOR PROOUCTION NO. 27: All documents establishing your attorney/client 

relationship with Eitner and/or Nelva. 

B.ESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad. 

Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PROOUCTION NO. 28: All documents terminating your attorney/client 

relationship with Nelva. 

RESPONSE: Defe!ldants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassillg. Defe!ldants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants 

object to this request because it assumes facts not ill evidence. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PROOUCTION NO, 29: All documents establishing your attomey/client 

relationship with Anita, either illdividually or as trustee of any of the Brunstillg Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassillg. Defend®ts object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a rnere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defen.dants further object to this request because it is !lOt limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks illformatio!l protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

perso!l(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

REQUEST FOR PROOUCTlON NO. 30: All documents terminating your attorney/clie!lt 

relatio!lship with Anita, either individually or as trustee of any of the Brunsting T1usts. 

RESPONSE: Defe!ldants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 
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is a mere fishing el<pedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private inf01mation of 

person( s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUC'flON NO. 3l: All documents terminating your attorney/client 

relationship with Amy, either individually or as trustee of any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attomey-c!ient privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person( s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

REQUEST FOR l'RODVC'flON NO. 32: All documents establishing. your attorney/client 

relationship with Amy, either individually or as trustee of any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESJ>ONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to tbe request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in tin1e. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

BEQUEST FOR l'RODUC'flON NO. 33: All documents relating to any referrals of Anita 

and/or Amy, eitl;ler individually or as trustees of any of the Brunsting Trusts, to other attorneys. 

:RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants further object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants frnther 

object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

BEQUEST FOR l'RODVC'flON NO. 34; All cell phone and/or long distance records and 

logs reflecting telephone calls with Anita, Amy, and/or Candy from July 1, 2010 to the present. 
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RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Defendants further object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the 

attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: !;'lease see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUC'fiON NO. 35: All long distance records and logs reflecting faxes 

to Anita, Amy, and/or Candy from July 1, 2010 to the present. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Defendants further object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the 

attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without watvmg the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 36: All logs reflecting faxes from Anita, Amy and/or 

Candy from July I, 2010 to the present. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Defendants further object to !his request to !he extent it seeks information protected by the 

attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without wruvmg !he foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 37: All cell phone records reflecting calls with Nelva 

from July 1, 2010 to 1he present. 

RESPONSE: Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 38: All records reflecting 'faxes to or from Nelva from 

July l, :2010 to the present. 

RESPONSE: Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 39: All cell phone records reflecting calls with Carl 

and/or Drina Brunsting from July I, 2010 to the present. 

RESPO~SE: Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 
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Subject to and without wa1V!ng the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 40: All records reflecting faxes to or from Carl and/or 

Prina Bnmsting from July 1, 2010 to the present. 

RESPON§E: Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 41: All cell phone records ~eflecting calls with Carole 

Bnmsting from July 1, 2010 to the present 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

gEOlJEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 42: All records reflecting faxes to or from Carole 

Bmnsting from July 1, 2010 to the present. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTlON NO. 43: All investigators' reports relating to the Brunsting 

family and/or any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is overly broad, unduly burdensome, 

and harassing. Defendants o~ect to this request because it seeks information that is not relevant 

or ret>so)lably calculated to lead to the discovery ofrelevant evidence. Defendants further object 

to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendmts object to this request on the grounds that it is overbroad, exceeds the scope of 

permissible discovery, and requires .Defendants to marshal their evidence. TEX. R Crv. P. 

192.5(c)(2). Defendants further object to this request because it seeks, on its face, the mental 

impressions, opinions, and legal theories, and thereby invades the work product privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. Defendants object to this request because it 

assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants object to this request because it is pot limited in time. 

Su~ect to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST fOR PRODUC'J'lON NO. 44: All tape recordings and/or video recordings 

involving any Bnmsting family member and/or any of the B1unsting Trusts. 

19;22730vl 
00520.415 



Thompson Coe Fax:7134038298 Mar 4 2014 05:10pm P015/028 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is overly broad, u:oduly burdensome, 

and harassing. Defendants object to thls request because it seeks information that is not relevant 

or reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of relevant evidence. Defendants further object 

to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request on the grou:ods that it is overbroad, exceeds the scope of 

. pennissible discovery, and requires Defendants to marshal their evidence. TEX. R. C!V. P. 

192.5(c)(2). Defendants further object to this request because it seeks, on its face, the mental 

impressions, opinions, and legal theories, and thereby invades the work product privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. Defendants object to this request because it 

assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 45: All photographs involving any Brunsting family 

member and/or any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

J,U:SPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is overly broad, u:oduly burdensome, 

and harassing. Defendants object to thls request because it seeks information that is not relevant 

or reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of relevant evidence. Defendants further object 

to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Defendants object to this request on the grounds that it is overbroad, exceeds the scope of 

permissible discovery, and requires Defendants to marshal their evidence. TEX. R. Crv. P. 

192.5(c)(2). Defendants further object to this request because it seeks, on its face, the mental 

impressions, opinions, and legal theories, and thereby invades the work product privilege. 

Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and private information of 

person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. Defendants object to this request because it 

assumes facts not in evidence. Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUC'HON NO. 46: All materials provided to Elmer and/or Nelva 

J3runsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is overly broad, unduly burdensome, 

harassing, and fails to specifY those documents sought with reasonable particularity. Defendants 

object to the request as it is overly broad, calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, and is 

a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence. Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants further 

object to this request to the extent it documents that are equally available to Plaintiff. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants could not possibly recall every material ever provided to Elmer and/or Nelva 
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Brunsting. Please see the responsive documents previously produced which Defendants 

specifically recall providing to them. 

B;EOUES'J FOR PRODUCTION NO. 47: All communications to beneficiaries of the 

Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not lirnited in time. Defendants 

further object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client 

privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REOUES'J FOR PRODUCTION NO. 48: All calendars reflecting legal work and/or meetings 

or telephone conferences with any member of the Brunsting family or with any third parties 

concerning Brunsting family issues and/or any of the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. Defendants 

further object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the attorney-client 

privjlege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: Please see 

the responsive documents previously produced. 

REOlJEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 49: All source documents used to prepare any 

accountings relating to assets owned by Elmer Brunsting, Nelva Brunsting and/or any of the 

Brunsting Trusts. · 

RESPONSE: Please see the responsive documents previously produced. 

REOlJEST FOR PRODUCTlON NO. 50: All speeches, outlines and/or materials distributed 

at presentations made by Vacek & Freed attorneys or employees which were attended by Elmer 

or Nelva Brunsting. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is overly broad, unduly burdensome, 

harassing, and fails to speci:fY those documents sought with reasonable particularity. Defendants 

object to the request as it is overly broad, calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, and is 

a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evjdence. Defendants object to this request because it is not limited in time. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defo:mdants do not recall which presentations were attended by Elmer and/or Nelva Brunsting. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 51: All speeches, outlines and/or materials distributed 

at presentations made by Vacek & Freed attorneys or employees since January 1, 2008. 
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RESPONSE: Defendants object to the request as it is overly broad, calls for material wholly 

irrelevant to this cause, does not.state with reasonable particularity what is being called for, is a 

mere fislring expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discoverY of admissible 

evidence. 

Subject to and without wamng the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants will supplement related speeches,. outlines and/or materials distributed at 

presentations in accordance with the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

REOUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 52: All pleadings from any cases in which you have 

been named as a party since January 1, 2008, other than those relating to the Brunsting Trusts. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request because it is overly broad, unduly burdensome, 

and harassing. Defendants also object to this request because it seeks information that is not 

reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Defendants further object 

to this request to the extent it seeks public information that is equally available to Plaintiff. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 53: All expert designations identifying attorneys at 

Vacek & Freed as experts in any cases since January 1, 2008. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Defendants further object to this request to the extent it see:t<s information protected by the 

attorney-client privilege. Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and 

private information ofperson(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to tlris request at this time. 

REQUEST FOR J>RODUCilON NO. 54: All opinions or expert reports concerning fiduciary 

or trust issues prepared by any attorney with Vacek & Freed since JanuarJ 1, 2008. 

RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbxoad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discoverY of 

admissible evidence. Defendants object to this request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Defendants further object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the 

attorney-client privilege. Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and 

private information of person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. Defendants further object to 

this request because it seeks, on its face, the mental impressions, opinions, and legal theories, and 

thereby invades the work product privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time. 
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REQUEST FO.R P.RQJ>UCTION NO. 55: All designations of experts, reports prepared by 

experts, and depositions of experts in cases in which you have been named as a party since 

January I, 2008 . 

.RESPONSE: Defendants object that this request is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and 

harassing. Defendants object to the request as it calls for material wholly irrelevant to this cause, 

is a mere fishing expedition and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. Defendants object to th.is request because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Defendants further object to this request to the extent it seeks information protected by the 

attorney-client privilege. Defendants object to this request to the extent it seeks confidential and 

private information of person(s) who are not parties to this lawsuit. Defendants further object to 

this request because it seeks, on its face, the mental impressions, opinions, and legal theories, and 

thereby invades the work product privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendants respoud as follows: 

Defendants have no documents responsive to this request at this time . 

.REQUlj!ST FO.R PRODUCTION NO. 56: All exhibits you plan to offer in the trial of this 

case . 

.RESPONSE: Defendants object to this request ou the grounds that it is overbroad, exceeds the 

scope of permissible discovery, and requires Defendants to marshal their evidence. TEX. R. Ctv. 

P. 192.5(c)(2). Defendants further object to this request because it seeks, on its face, the mental 

impressions, opinions, and legal theories of Defendants' counsel, and thereby invades the work 

product privilege. 

Subject to the foregoing objection and without waiving the same, Defendants respond as follows: 

Defendants wili timely supplement such documents in accordance with the Texas Rules of Civil 

Procedure, if necessary. 
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CAUSE NO. :2013-05455 

CARL HENRY BRUNSTING, 
INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR OF THE 
ESTATES OF ELMER H. BRUNSTING 
AND NELV A E. BRUNSTING, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

CANDACE L. KUNZ-FREED AND VACEK § 

&FREED,PLLCF/K/A THEVACEKLAW § 
FlRM, PLLC, § 

Defendants. 
§ 
§ 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF 

HARRJS COUNTY, TEXAS 

164TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

DEFENDANT CANDACE L. KUNZ' FIRST AMENDED OBJECTIONS AND 

ANSWERS TO Pl.AINTIH'S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 

TO: CARL ffENRY :BRUNSTING, INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR OF TffE ESTATE 

OF ELMER H. BRUNSTING AND NELVA E. BRUNSTING, Plaintiff, by and 

through hi~ attorney of record, Bobbie G. Bayless, Bayless & Stokes, 2931 Ferndale, 

Houston, Texas 77098. 

Pursuant to Rule 197, TEXAS RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, Defendants CANDACE L. 

KUNZ hereby submits her First Amended Objections and Answers to Plaintiffs' First Set of 

Interrogatories. 

197937Svl 
00520415 



Thompson Coe Fax:713d03B29B Mar d 201d 05:10pm P020/02B 

Respectfully submitted, 

rnoMPsONL.oE, cis & JRONS, u.P 

By: ______ 2_·~-------------------­
Zandra E. Foley 
State Bar No. 24032085 

Cozy S. Reed 
State Bar No. 24076640 
One Riverway, Suite 1600 

Houston, Texas 77056 
Telephone: (713) 403-8200 

Telecopy: (713) 403-8299 

E-Mail: zfoley@thompsoncoe.com 

E-Mail: creed@thompsoncoe.com 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS, 
CANDACE L.l<:UNz.-FREED AND VACEK 

& FRE:ED, PLLC FIK!A TliE VACEK LAW 

FIRM,PLLC 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certifY that pursuant to the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure, on this the 4th day of 

March, 2014, a true and correct copy of this document has been forwarded by certified mail, 

facsimile and/or e-filing to counsel: 

197937Svl 
00520-415 

Bobbie G. Bayless 
Bayless & Stokes 
2931 Fexndale 
Houston, Texas 77098 
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INTERROGATORIES 

INTERROGATORY NO, 1: Provide any cell phone numbers you have had since July 1, 2010 

and identify the company providing cell phone service for each such number. 

ANSWER: Defendant further objects to the request on the grounds of undue burden, 

harassment, irrelevancy, and violation of confidentiality and rights of privacy of Defendant and it 

is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Further, it 

constitutes an unfair prejudicial invasion of Defendant's proprietary interest, personal, 

constitutional, and property rights absent probative value to the issues of this case. The 

unfairness far outweighs any probative value. 

Subject to the foregoing objection and without waiving the same, Defendant answers as follows: 

Since July I, /.010 my cell phone number has been (/.81) /.17-0013. 

INTERROGATORY NO.2: Identify the company providing your long distance service both 

at work and at home since July I, /.010. 

ANSWER: Defendant further objects to the request on the grounds of undue burden, 

harassment, irrelevancy, and violation of confidentiality and rights of privacy of Defendant and it 

is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Further, it 

constitutes an unfair prejudicial invasion of Defendant's proprietary interest, personal, 

constitutional, and property rights absent probative value to the issues of this case. The 

unfairness far outweighs any probative value. 

Subject to the foregoing objection and without waiving the same, Defendant answers as follows: 

Since July 1, 2010 the provider of my long distance service at home has been .AT&T and at the 

office has been Cbeyond., Inc. 

INTERROGATORY NO.3: Provide all email addresses you have had since July 1, 2010 and 

identify the internet service provider for all such addresses. 

ANSWER: Defendant further objects to the request on the grounds of undue burden, 

ha.rassment, irrelevancy, and violation of confidentiality and rights of privacy of Defendant and it 

is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Further, it 

constitutes. an unfair prejudicial invasion of Defendant's proprietary interest, personal, 

constitutional, and property rights absent probative value to the issues of this case. The 

unfairness far outweighs any probative value. 

Subject to the foregoing objection and without waiving the same, Defendant answers as follows: 

Since July 1, 2010 I have used Candace@vacek.com and freedcandace@sbcglobal.net. 

INTERROGATORY NO.4: If you contend Nelva Brunsting had capacity at each time after 

July 1, 2010 when she sigo.ed documents prepared by Vacek & freed, state all actions you took 

to insure her capacity. 
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ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it asslli!les facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

its evidence. Defendant funher objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows; As I do for 

all of my clients, I met with Ms. Nelva Brunsting in-person and discussed all of the doclli!lents 

prior to her signing them. Before she actually signed any of the documents I ensured they were 

properly drafted as she requested. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 5; If you contend Nelva Brunsting lost capacity at some point after 

July 1, 2010, state when that occurred, how it was determined she lacked capacity, what 

documents it prevented her from signing, and all facts indicating her lack of capacity at that 

point. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant finiher objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit .future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: At no time 

before or after July 1, 2010 have I ever stated that Ms. Bmnsting lost capacity. 

INTERROGATORY NO.6: Please indicate all steps taken to ensure that Nelva Brunsting was 

not unduly influenced by other parties in connection with documents prepared by Vacek & Freed 

after Elmer Brunsting's death. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: As I do for 

all of my clients, I met with Ms. Brunsting in-person and mscussed all of the documents prior to 

her signing them. Before she actually signed any of the documents I ensured they w<)re properly 

drafted as she requested. I do not think/believe Ms. Bl1lllsting was influenced by other parties, 

because at no time were any material changes mad" in the disposition of her estate plan with 

respect to the beneficiaries. 
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INTERROGATORY NO. 7: Describe all steps taken after July I, 2010 to ensure that the 

beneficiaries of the Brunsting Trusts were treated impartially. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects that this interrogatory is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, 

unduly burdensome, and fails to specify the information sought with reasonable particularity. 

Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. Moreover, 

Defendant objects to this inten·ogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal her 

evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit futore 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: Ms. 

Brunsting had a general power of appointment over the Survivor's Trust assets and a Limited 

Power of Appointment over the Decedent's Trust assets among the joint descedents of Elmer and 

Nelva. These power of appointments allowed her to include or exclude descendants of both 

Nelva and Elmer Brunsting from the assets. No notice is required to be given if she had 

exercised these limited and general powers of appointment. Notwithstanding, at one point in 

time, Ms. Brunsting requested that I draft documents removing one of her grandchildren as a 

remainder beneficiary. After further discussion, Ms. Brunsting decided not to sign the power of 

appointment. 

INT:ERROGATORY NO. 8: Describe all steps taken to ensure that the beneficiaries of the 

Brunsting Trusts were properly informed concerning the terms and activities of the Brunsting 

Trusts after Elmer Brunsting died. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects that this interrogatory is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, unduly 

burdensome, and fails to specify the information sought with reasonable particularity. Defendant 

objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. Moreover, Defendant 

objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal her evidence. 

Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit future deposition 

and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any limitation 

when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: Ms. 

Brunsting had a general power of appointment over the Survivor's Trust assets and a Limited 

Power of Appointment over the Decedent's Trust assets. These powers of appointments allowed 

her to include or exclude descendants of both Nelva and Elmer Brunsting from the assets. No 

notice was required to be given if she had exercised these powers of appointment. Ms. Brunsting 

was the primary beneficiary of both the Decedent's Trust and the Survivor's Trust until her 

passing. Upon her death, I provided the Successor Trustees with a document titled "I'm a 

Trustee Now What." This document provided the Successor Trustees with information related to 

their fiduciary duties as an acting trustee and accounting requirements. It would be the 

Successor Trustee(s) responsibility to keep the beneficiaries informed of the terms and activities 

of the Trust according to the terms of the Trust. 
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INTERROGATORY NO.9: Describe all steps taken to ensure that Nelva Brunsting's interests 

were protected both before and after she resigned as trustee. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to lim:it future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: As 1 do for 

all of my clients, I met with Ms. Brunsting in-person and discussed all of the documents prior to 

her signing them. Before she actually signed any of the documents l ensured they were properly 

drafted as she requested. Specifically, I explained to Ms. Brunsting the effect of the resignation 

and that the resignation was revocable and could be reversed if she later desired. Also, as a 

matter of course, trustees are advised of their fiduciary duty to the beneficar(ies) and their duty to 

account for trust assets. Trustees are advised to be familiar with and defer to the trust 

documents. 

!NTERROGATORX NO. 10: Describe all steps taken to ensure that the assets of the 

Brunsting Trusts were preserved after July I, 2010. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition andlo> trial 

testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: I did not 

take any steps to preserve the Trust assets. It is one of the duties of the Trusee(s) to preserve the 

assets of the trust. 

lNTERROGATORX NO. 11: Describe all steps taken to detem1ine the nature and values of 

the assets owned by Elmer Brunsting, Nelva Brunsting, or by any of the Brunsting Trusts at the 

time of Elmer Brunsting's death and identify evety person providing information concerning the 

value and existence of assets. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. 
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Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: After the 

death of a Grantor, the remaining trustee or successor trustee may engage my firm to assist in the 

identification of assets, titling, and if recommended or desired, implement tax planning and file 

federal estate tax return, if necessary. In this case, Ms. Bnmsting did retain our firm to advise on 

the administration of the Trust and to implement the tax planning, including the funding of a 

credit shelter trust. In fact, I met with Ms. Brunsting a minimum of three times to discuss the 

value and existence of assets. Date of death values are/were obtained from brokers, appraisers, 

tax preparers, and banks, as well as the internet, evaluation programs and monthly account 

statements provided by Ms. Brunsting herself_ These values are/were used to determine proper 

allocation among trusts and then are divided according to the texms of the trust agreement, State 

law and Trustee discretion. In this case, asset information was obtained from the following 

persons or companies: 

Rich Rikkers 
Bennie K. J ans, Broker at Jans Real Estate 

Darlene at Edward Jones 
Nelva Bnmsting 
Harris County Appraisal District 

Anita Bnmsting 
Kelley Blue Book 
John Hancock: Donna Vickers 

Securian: Erin Nuccum. 
BNYMellon 
Computershare 
Metlife: Clare Cook, Douglas Uhling 

Ohio State Life Insurance Co 
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services 

Bank of America 
BlueBonnett Cr<:>dit Union 

INTERROGATORY NO. U: Describe all steps taken to dctermine the nature and values of 

the assets owned by the Bnmsting Trusts at the time of Nelva Bnmsting's resignation as trustee 

and identify every person providing information concerning the value and existence of assets. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extept it seeks to limit future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by xequesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: I did not 

take any steps to determine the nature and value of the assets owned by the Trusts at the tin1e of 

Ms. Brunsting's resignation as trustee, and I was requested or engaged to do so. One of the 

duties of the Successor Trustee would have been to determine the Trusts assets. 
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INTERROGATORY NO. 13: Describe all steps taken to determine the nature and values of 

the assets owned by Elmer Brunsting's estate, Nelva Brunsting, or by any of the Brunsting Trusts 

at the time of N elva Brunsting's death, and identifY every person providing information 

concerning the value and existence of assets. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assU)JleS facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks to limit future 

deposition and/or trial testimony by requesting Defendant to answer this question without any 

limitation when the information would be better elicited through deposition and/or trial 

testimony. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks information 

protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: After the 

death of a Grantor, the remaining trustee or successor tlustee may engage my firm to assist in the 

identification of assets, titling, and if recommended or desired, implement tax planning and file 

federal estate tax return, if necessary. Date of death values are obtained from brokers, 

appraisers, tax preparers, and banks, as well as the internet, evaluation programs and monthly 

account statements. These values are used to determine proper allocation among trusts and then 

are to be divided according to the terms of the trust agreement. In thls case, asset information 

was obtained from the following persons or companies; 

Anita Bmnsting 
Amy Brunsting 
Carol Brunsting 
Candace Curtis 
Bank of America Statements 
Houston Association of Realtors 
Harris County Appraisal District 
BNYMellon 
Bluebonnett Credit union 
Internal Revenue Services 
Lincoln Financial Group 
Edward Jones 
Doug Williams 
Kally Mouw, Certified Appraiser 

INTERROGATORY NO. 14: Specify the dates and locations of all meetings any 

representative of Vacek & Freed had with Nelva Btunsting after July I, 2010 and identifY all 

parties attending such meetings. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this inteJ.Togatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks information 

protected by the attoxney-client privilege. 
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Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: I met with 

Ms. B=sting in her residence on December 21, 2010. At this time I cannot recall everyone 

present, but believe remember Anita Brunsting, Amy Brunsting, and Carole Brunsting, along 

with a caregiver to have been present. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 15: Specify the date of every telephone copference any 

representative of Vacek & Freed had with Nelva Brunsting after July 1, 2010 and identify any 

other parties participating in each telephone conference. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks information 

protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: The 

following conference calls were conducted between Ms. Brunsting and a representative of Vacek 

& Freed after July 1, 2010: 

October 7, 2010 (an})- Candace Kunz-Freed and Nelva Brunsting. Carol Brunsting was on the 

telephone for part of the conversation. 

October 7, 2010 (pm)- Candace Kunz-Freed and Nelva Brunsting. 

October 11,2010- Summer Peoples and NelvaBnmsting. 

October 11,2010- Candace Kunz-Freed, Susan Vacek, and Nelva Brunsting. 

October 14,2010- Summer Peoples and Nelva Brunsting. 

October 25,2010- Candace Kunz-Freed, Carol Brunsting, Anita Brunsting, Arny Bnmsting, and 

Candace Curtis. 

It is possible there more telephone calls, but these are all of the conference calls that l can recall 

based on my notes up to the time Nelva resigned. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 16: Specify the date of every telephone conference any 

representative of Vacek & Freed had with Anita Brunsting after July l, 2010 and identify any 

other parties participating in ~ach telephone conference. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this inten·ogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extept it seeks information 

protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: The 

following conference calls were conducted between Anita Brunsting and a representative of 

Vacek & Freed after July 1, 2010 and up to the time Nelva resigned; 

July 20,2010- Candace Kunz-Freed and Anita Brunsting. 

October 6, 2010- Candace Kuntz-Freed and Anita Brunsting. 

October 11, 2010- Summer Peoples and Anita Brunsting. 
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October 25, 2010- Candace Kuoz-Freed, Carol Brunsting, Anita Brunsting, Amy Brunsting, and 

Candace Curtis. 

It is possible there more telephone calls, but these are all of the conference calls that I can recall 

based on my notes up to the time Nelva resigned. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 17: Specify the date of every telephone conference any 

representative of Vacek & Freed had with Amy Brunsting after July 1, 2010 and identify any 

other party participating in the call. 

ANSWER: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it seeks info1mation 

protected by the attorney-client privilege. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: The 

following coJJference calls were conducted between Amy Brunsting and a representative of 

Vacek & Freed after July l, 2010 and up to the time Nelva resigned: 

October 25, 2010- Candace Kunz-Freed, Carol Brunsting, Anita Brunsting, Amy Brunsting, and 

Candace Curtis. 

It is possible there more telephone calls, but these are all of the conference calls that I can recall 

based on my notes up to the time N elva resigned .. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 18: SpecifY the date of every telephone conference any 

representative of Vacek & Freed had with Carole Brunsting after July 1, 2010 until the present 

and identify any other party participating in the call. 

ANSW]j!R: Defendant objects to this interrogatory because it assumes facts not in evidence. 

Moreover, Defendant objects to this interrogatory for the reason it requires Defendant to marshal 

her evidence. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objects, Defendant answers as follows: The 

following conference calls were conducted between Amy Brunsting and a representative of 

Vacek & Freed after July I, 2010: 

October 7, 2010 (am)- Candace Kunz-Freed and Nelva Brunsting. Carol Brunsting was on the 

telephone for part of the conversation. 
October 13, 201 0 - Candace Kuntz-Freed and Carol Brunsting. 

October 25, 2010- Candace Kunz-Freed, Carol B=sting, Anita Brunsting, Amy Brunsting, and 

Candace Curtis. 

It is possible there more telephone calls, but these are all of the conference calls that I can recall 

based on my notes up to the time Nelva resigned. 
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